
 
 
 
 
 
#workingplymouth 

WORKING PLYMOUTH 
 
Tuesday 10 June 2014 
3.30 pm 
Council House (Next to the Civic Centre), Plymouth 
 
Members: 
Councillor Murphy, Chair 
Councillor Darcy, Vice Chair 
Councillors Ball, Hendy, Michael Leaves, Morris, Mrs Nelder, John Smith, Storer, Wheeler and 
Wigens. 
 
Members are invited to attend the above meeting to consider the items of business overleaf. 
 
 
Tracey Lee 
Chief Executive 

 

 

 Democratic Support 
Plymouth City Council 
Civic Centre 
Plymouth  PL1 2AA 
 
Please ask for Helen Rickman 
T 01752 398444 
E helen.rickman@plymouth.gov.uk 
www.plymouth.gov.uk/democracy 
Published 02 June 2014 

Public Document Pack



 
WORKING PLYMOUTH 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
PART I – PUBLIC MEETING 
  
1. TO NOTE THE CHAIR AND VICE CHAIR    
  
 The panel will note the appointment of the Chair and Vice Chair for the municipal year 

2014/15. 
  
2. APOLOGIES    
  
 To receive apologies for non-attendance by panel members. 
  
3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
  
 Members will be asked to make any declarations of interest in respect of items on this 

agenda. 
  
4. CHAIR'S URGENT BUSINESS    
  
 To receive reports on business which, in the opinion of the Chair, should be brought 

forward for urgent consideration.  
  
5. TERMS OF REFERENCE   (Pages 1 - 2) 
  
 For the panel to note the terms of reference for the Working Plymouth scrutiny panel. 
  
6. APPOINTMENT OF CO-OPTED REPRESENTATIVES    
  
 The panel will consider the appointment of co-opted representatives to the Working 

Plymouth panel. 
  
7. SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS FOR FORTHCOMING YEAR    
  
 To note the Working Plymouth meeting dates for 2014/15 as follows – 

 
• 3 September 2014 

 
• 10 December 2014 

 
• 18 March 2015 

 

  
8. OVERVIEW OF PRIORITIES FOR WORKING PLYMOUTH    
  
 Members will be provided with an overview of priorities for the Working Plymouth 

scrutiny panel. 



 

  
9. PRESENTATION ON G.A.M.E (GROWTH, ASSETS AND 

MUNICIPAL ENTERPRISE) TRANSFORMATION 
PROGRAMME   

 

  
 Members will be provided with a presentation on the Growth, Assets and Municipal 

Enterprise (G.A.M.E) transformation programme. 
  
10. COST AND BENEFIT MONITORING INFORMATION FOR 

TRANSFORMATION (G.A.M.E) - TO FOLLOW   
 

  
 Members will be provided with Cost and Benefit Monitoring Information for 

Transformation (G.A.M.E). 
  
11. GROWTH AND ASSETS FULL BUSINESS CASE   (Pages 3 - 36) 
  
 Members will be provided with the Growth and Assets Full Business Case. 
  
12. DRAFT WORK PROGRAMME   (Pages 37 - 38) 
  
 For Members to receive the draft work programme for 2014-15. 
  
13. EXEMPT BUSINESS    
  
 To consider passing a resolution under Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 

1972 to exclude the press and public from the meeting for the following item(s) of 
business on the grounds that it (they) involve(s) the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in paragraph(s) of Part I of Schedule 12A of the Act, as amended 
by the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 

  
PART II (PRIVATE MEETING) 
 
PART II (PRIVATE MEETING) 
 
AGENDA 
 
MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC TO NOTE 
that under the law, the Panel is entitled to consider certain items in private.  Members of the 
public will be asked to leave the meeting when such items are discussed.  
 
NIL. 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 Not protectively marked OR Protect OR Restricted 

WORKING PLYMOUTH 
Terms of Reference

 

 

 

OUR MISSION STATEMENT 

To scrutinise matters relating to our specified responsibilities with a view to improving services, reducing 
inequalities and improving outcomes for the people of Plymouth. 
 

OUR CORPORATE PLAN PRIORITIES 

• Raising Aspirations 
• Deliver Growth 
• Reduce Inequality 
• Provide Value for Communities 

OUR CORPORATE COMMITMENT THEMES 

• Working Plymouth 
• Greener Plymouth 
• Moving Plymouth 
• Vibrant Plymouth 
• Proud Plymouth 

LINKED TO THE CABINET MEMBER AND DEPARTMENT WITH RESPONSIBILITY FOR 
 

• Regional and local economic strategy 
• Apprenticeships (linked from Ambitious Plymouth) 
• Development planning 
• Strategic Housing Delivery 
• Transport policies and strategies 
• Social enterprise support 
• Sustainable transport including cycling 
• Highways 
• Car parks 
• Tamar Bridge and Torpoint Ferry 
• Licensing – Hackney Carriage 

 
PARTNERSHIP LINKS 

• Growth Board 
 
MEMBERSHIP - The Chair and Vice Chair of the panel shall serve on the Co-operative Scrutiny Board.  
All members of the panel will adhere to the general rules of Overview and Scrutiny.  There are 12 
members of the panel including the Chair and Vice Chair.  The Vice Chair is from the opposite political 
group to the Chair. 
 
 
 

Page 1 Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank



CITY OF PLYMOUTH 
  
Subject:  Growth & Assets Full Business Case    

Committee:  Working Plymouth Scrutiny Panel  

                                  

Date:   10th June 2014     

Cabinet Member: Cllr M Lowry   

CMT Member: Anthony Payne, Director for Development & Regeneration  

Author:                    Nigel Gooding, GAME Programme Manager                                

Contact:  01752 304223    

Ref:     

Part:                         1    
 
Executive Summary: 
  
The Growth & Assets project proposes that by accelerating commercial and housing developments, 
an increase of income can be achieved which will benefit the City Council in turn protecting Council 
revenue budgets across its full range of functions.  The aim of project is to maximise government 
funding through the incentives of New Homes Bonus, associated increase in Council Tax and 
retention of National Non Domestic Rates. 

 
The Project by working co-operatively with partners, developers, stakeholders and citizens will 
identify a pipeline consisting of potential future housing and commercial developments. By following 
the proposals outlined in this business case for accelerating growth and increasing resources in key 
departments within the Council, more of these pipeline sites and bringing empty homes back into 
use could be brought completed within the next three years, helping to deliver our Growth Assets 
and Municipal Enterprise (GAME) financial targets. More importantly it will increase the desire, offer 
and availability of housing and more employment opportunities across the city for the benefits of 
residents, whilst at the same time alleviating benefit dependency. 
 
The Growth & Assets Project is expected to deliver a minimum of £6.7million of gross additional 
benefit per annum at the end of the three year programme at an investment cost of £720k.   The 
project therefore produces a net benefit of £6 million.   

 
The purpose of this report is to seek cabinet approval for the Growth & Assets full business case. 
          
The Brilliant Co-operative Council Corporate Plan 2013/14 -2016/17:  
 
The GAME programme as part of Transformation programme, supporting the delivery of the 
Corporate Plan had its outline business case approved at cabinet on the 23rd March 2014. 
 
When the Council adopted its Corporate Plan in July 2013, the role of the Council’s transformational 
change programme was recognised in addressing the financial challenges that the Council will face 
over the coming years. In September 2013, the Council supported the implementation of a Council 
wide transformation programme to substantially reduce its operating costs and ensure the maximum 
possible investment in achieving its objectives. The Council was informed that advice had been sought 
from Ernst and Young concerning the robustness of its financial estimates for future years and the 
nature and scale of changes that it would have to make to its structure and delivery arrangements to 
meet its financial challenges and deliver the Corporate Plan. At the same time, the Council adopted a 

Page 3 Agenda Item 11



 2

longer term approach to addressing the reduction in funding available to the Council, planning for a 
balanced indicative budget in each of the coming three years. This approach was considered and 
endorsed by the Co-operative Scrutiny Board at its meetings of 4 September and 16 October 2013.                           
Implications for Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:     
Including finance, human, IT and land 
 
 
The acceleration of building new homes, bringing empty ones back into use and growing the City 
commercially will bring in an additional uplift of income per annum of £6.7million gross by 2016/17.  
   
Other Implications: e.g. Section 17 Community Safety, Health and Safety, Risk 
Management, Equalities Impact Assessment, etc. 
 
Other Implications: e.g. Child Poverty, Community Safety, Health and Safety and Risk 
Management: 
 
 
The provision of additional adequate housing and new jobs, as well as the associated green spaces for 
recreation are a key measure to address social issues such as child poverty and community cohesion.   
The Growth & Asset business plan through acceleration in new homes, many of which will be 
affordable, and in the social rented housing sector are complementary to addressing social issues.  
The business plan by creating jobs will reduce dependency on benefits and support health and well-
being. 
 
  
Recommendations & Reasons for recommended action: 
 
This report, and business case are going forward to Cabinet with the following recommendation: 
 

1. Approve the Growth & Asset full business case. 
 
 
Alternative options considered and reasons for recommended action: 
 
Do nothing - this approach would be contrary to the vision for Plymouth set out in the adopted 
Core Strategy and the spatial and economic strategy for additional homes and employment set out in 
various adopted Area Action plans and related strategies.  Such an approach would also be likely to 
be inconsistent with the emerging evidence base which is informing the current production of the 
Plymouth Plan. 
 
Take a reactive approach to accelerating development – whilst several city departments have 
an input into delivering housing and commercial developments through a positive approach to 
discharging their various statutory functions, this would not provide the necessary impetus to 
delivering ambitious accelerated housing and commercial targets,  
 
Taking a proactive approach to accelerating growth – through a step change transformational 
approach to accelerating housing and commercial developments the GA business plan preferred 
approach will achieve financial targets consistent with the City Council Cooperative Corporate Plan 
and the 3 year budget. 
 
 

Page 4



 3

Background papers: Growth & Assets Business Case 
 
 
Sign off:   
 
Fin 28/5/14 Leg 28/5/14 Monit

oring 
officer 

28/5/14 SRO  29/
5/1
4 

    

Originating SMT Member: 29/5/14 
 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

 
 
 

Growth & Assets 
Full Business Case 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Revision History 

Version Date Summary of Changes Changes marked 

0.01 15/04/14 First Draft LW 

0.02 29/04/14 Change to all sections NG 

0.03 12/05/14 Change to all sections MG 

0.04 15/05/14 Change to numerous sections after feedback NG/MG 

0.05 22/05/14 Change to all sections NG/MG 

0.06 27/05/14 Changes to sections 1,2 NG 

0.07 28/05/14 Changes to section 3 NG 

0.08 01/06/14 Formatting changes NG 

 
Approvals 

Name Title Signature Date Version 

Mark Lowry  Lead member   E-mail reference 29/5/14 6.0 

Simon Arthurs  Finance Manager  Please see cabinet 
report sign off 
reference number 

28/5/14 6.0 

Alwyn Thomas  Legal  Please see cabinet 
report sign off 

28/5/14 6.0 

Project Name: Growth & Assets 

Date: 01/06/14 Version:  0.09 
Author: Lewis Walsh, Nigel Gooding & Marc Gorman  
Owner(s): Paul Barnard 

David Draffan 

Page 7



Full Business Case – Growth & Assets 
 

2 
v.0.09 

reference number 

David Sheppard  Monitoring Officer – Legal  Please see cabinet 
report sign off 
reference number 

28/5/14  6.0 

Paul Barnard/David 
Draffan 

Project Executives E-mail references 29/5/14 7.0 

Anthony Payne  SRO E-mail references 29/5/14 7.0 

Paul Barnard/David 
Draffan 

Project Executive E-mail references 01/06/14 9.0 

     

 

This document has been distributed to: 

Distribution 
Name Title Date  Version 
Mark Lowry  Lead Councillor  27/5/14 6.0 

Sue Thomas Head of Portfolio Office  27/5/14 6 & 7 

As above     

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 8



Full Business Case – Growth & Assets 
 

3 
v.0.09 

 
 

Contents 

1. Executive Summary ......................................................................................................................................................... 9 

2. Vision Statement ........................................................................................................................................................... 10 

3. Strategic Case ................................................................................................................................................................ 11 

3.1. Plymouth Growth Dividend ........................................................................................................................................ 11 

3.2. Asset Management ...................................................................................................................................................... 16 

3.3. The Growth & Assets project in context 2014/15 ........................................................................................................ 19 

3.4. Objectives ..................................................................................................................................................................... 20 

3.5. Scope ............................................................................................................................................................................ 20 

3.6. Out of scope ................................................................................................................................................................. 21 

3.7. Assumptions ................................................................................................................................................................. 21 

4. Stakeholders .................................................................................................................................................................. 21 

4.1. Background .................................................................................................................................................................. 21 

4.2. Staff Engagement ........................................................................................................................................................ 23 

4.3. Partner Engagement .................................................................................................................................................... 23 

4.4. Member Engagement .................................................................................................................................................. 24 

4.5. Community Engagement ............................................................................................................................................. 24 

5. Financial Case ................................................................................................................................................................ 25 

5.2. Expected Costs ............................................................................................................................................................. 26 

6. Risk Analysis .................................................................................................................................................................. 27 

6.1. Interdependencies ........................................................................................................................................................ 27 

7. Project Plan ................................................................................................................................................................... 28 

7.1. Project Organisation .................................................................................................................................................... 28 

7.2. Quality Management ................................................................................................................................................... 29 

7.3. Project Management Methodology ............................................................................................................................. 29 

Page 9



An introduction to Plymouth City Council’s Transformation Programme 
Context 

 
2002-12: A Decade of Improvement 
 
The City of Plymouth has had an extra-ordinary journey over the past ten years.  A decade ago, it had a 
reputation as a city of low aspiration with a lack of vision, weak financial and strategic planning, poor 
relationships between agencies, and service delivery arrangements that did not meet the needs of all of 
its citizens.  An acknowledgement of the determined and sometimes inspired effort that was then made 
to improve the city came in 2010 when the Council was voted ‘Highest Achieving Council of the Year’ 
by the Municipal Journal.  Behind that accolade, foundations had been laid by successive political 
administrations of a clear, ambitious vision for the city, sound financial management arrangements, the 
development of strong strategic partnerships and a determined focus on the improvement of service 
delivery.  The Council has acknowledged and embraced its role as a key player in influencing the broader 
city and regional agenda, driving economic growth and making coherent contributions to broader policy-
making. 
 
Drivers for Transformation: 
 
The Brilliant Co-operative Council with less resources 
On its adoption of a new Corporate Plan in July 2013, the council set the bar still higher, to become a 
Brilliant Co-operative Council.  This ‘Plan on a Page’ commits the Council to achieving stretching 
objectives with measurable outcomes, and also sets out a Co-operative vision for the Council, creating a 
value-driven framework for the way that it will operate as well as the outcomes that it is committed to 
achieve. 
 
The Corporate Plan was developed using the principles of a Co-operative Council.  It is a short and 
focused document, but does not compromise on its evidence base, and was co-developed with the 
Cabinet of the Council, before being presented in person by members of the Corporate Management 
Team to every member of staff throughout the council at a series of 74 roadshows.  The positive results 
of this commitment to strong communications and engagement were evidenced by 81% of council staff 
responding to the workplace survey conducted in October 2013 agreeing that they understand and 
support the values and objectives set out in the Corporate Plan. 

Page 10



Full Business Case – Growth & Assets 
 

5 
v.0.09 

 
 
 
The economic, demographic and policy environment affecting public services is accepted as the most 
challenging in a generation.  At the same time as an aging population is placing increased demand on 
health and social care services, the UK is facing the longest, deepest and most sustained period of cuts 
to public services spending at least since World War II.  The Council’s Medium Term Financial plan 
identified in June 2013 funding cuts of £33million over the next three years which, when added to 
essential spend on service delivery amount to an estimated funding shortfall of circa £64.5million from 
2014/15 to 2016/17, representing 30% of the Council’s overall net revenue budget. 
 
The Council has shown remarkable resilience in addressing reduced funding and increased demand in 
previous years, removing circa £30m of net revenue spend from 2011/12 to 2013/4 through proactive 
management and careful planning.  However the Council has acknowledged that addressing further 
savings of the magnitude described above while delivering the ambitions of the Corporate Plan will 
require a radical change of approach. 
  

Page 11



Full Business Case – Growth & Assets 
 

6 
v.0.09 

 
Review of existing transformation programmes 
 
The council commissioned Ernst and Young in June 2013 to: 
 

• Examine the council’s financial projections and provide expert external validation of our 
assumptions about costs and income in the medium term 

• Review the council’s existing transformation programmes and provide a view as to whether they 
will deliver against the Corporate Plan 

• Provide advice as to how the council might achieve the maximum possible benefit through a 
revised approach to transformation 

 
Ernst and Young validated the council’s current Medium Term Financial Plan based on projections and 
assumptions jointly agreed, and judged it to be robust, taking into account the complex financial 
landscape and changing government policy. 
 
The council has initiated a number of far-reaching and ambitious change programmes over 2012-13 to 
address the twin aims of addressing financial constraints and improving service delivery.  These include: 

• Investment in Customer Transformation and Core ICT infrastructure (Cabinet approval 
September 2012) 

• ICT Shared Services: DELT (Cabinet approval October 2013) 
• Redevelopment of the Civic Centre and future accommodation requirements (Cabinet approval 

September 2013) 
• Modernising Adult Social Care Provision (Cabinet approval January and August 2013) 
• Co-location with Clinical Commissioning Group at Windsor House (Cabinet approval January 

2013) 
 
In addition to feedback and advice about individual programmes, the Council received advice that has 
been carefully considered, and which has informed the overall design of the Transformation Programme 
and the content of the business cases for the five programmes. 
 
Vision and Direction: The Blueprint 
 
The Council has responded to concerns that, despite strong support for the Corporate Plan from both 
officers and members, there was a lack of clarity about how the Corporate Plan translates into practical 
action and a danger that the council might be attempting to ‘do the right things, but in the wrong way’.  
After significant consultation with Members and over 100 staff from all levels and disciplines within the 
organisation, the Council’s vision for the Brilliant Co-operative Council has been translated into a 
Blueprint which describes the capabilities which the Council will need in the future.  These capabilities 
will be commissioned by the council and will result in services being delivered by the Council and a 
variety of other organisations operating across the public, community and voluntary and private sectors.  
The components of the Blueprint are illustrated below: 
 

Page 12



Full Business Case – Growth & Assets 
 

7 
v.0.09 

 
 
To inform the development of the main components of the Blueprint, a number of principles have been 
developed co-operatively with Members, senior officers and staff to ensure that the values set out in the 
Corporate Plan guide how the Blueprint is developed. 
 
Governance and Oversight 
 
The council has also responded to advice that governance and oversight arrangements for 
transformation projects would benefit from being strengthened.  Whilst ensuring that the council’s 
existing constitutional arrangements for decision making are unaffected, a number of bodies have been 
put in place to ensure a co-ordinated approach is taken to oversight of the Transformation programme.  
The detail of the transformation governance arrangements were considered by the council’s Audit 
Committee on 13 March 2014 and can be summarised as follows: 
 
Members 
 

• The Members Transformation Board provides executive ownership and accountability for the 
Transformation Portfolio, chaired by the Cabinet Member for Transformation and comprising 
the individual Cabinet Members aligned to the five programmes 

• The Transformation Advisory Group builds cross party dialogue, understanding and consensus 
on Transformation, and is chaired by the Cabinet Member for Transformation, comprising the 
Shadow Leader, Chair of the Co-operative Scrutiny Board and an additional ruling group 
Member. 

• The Co-operative Scrutiny Board and Panels are aligned to the Transformation Board and 
programmes that match their terms of reference 

 

Page 13



Full Business Case – Growth & Assets 
 

8 
v.0.09 

Officers 
 

• The Transformation Portfolio Board co-ordinates the delivery of the Blueprint, prioritises 
decisions within and between programmes, ensures effective engagement, ensures overall 
resourcing and delivery of the programme and recommends Programme Business cases and 
exceptions.  It is chaired by the Chief Executive and comprises Senior Responsible Officers for 
the Programmes, the Transformation Director, engagement leads, finance and HR Responsible 
Officers and the Head of the Portfolio Office 

• Programmes are led by a Senior Responsible Officer, who is accountable for the successful 
delivery of the programme, achieving desired outcomes and realising expected benefits and is 
responsible for chairing the Programme Board and leading the Programme 

• Each project within the five Programmes is led by a Project Executive who is accountable to the 
Senior Responsible Officer for the successful delivery of the Project, and chairs the Project 
Board. 

• The Portfolio Office provides co-ordination and support across all the programmes and projects 
and ensures that sufficient capacity and capability is in place to deliver the overall programme. 

 
There are 5 programmes to deliver the transformation. 
 
Customer and Service Transformation: This programme will transform the way the council 
interacts with customers to meet their demands and preferences, and transform the services that the 
Council decides to retain in-house.  

Co-operative Centre of Operations: Creating the business as usual strategic ‘centre’ for the 
Council, which uses the co-operative principles and intelligence to co-ordinate organisational decision 
making and activity.  

Integrated Health and Well Being: The Council can engage with partners to deliver services at a 
lower cost, whilst also improving outcomes and customer satisfaction. The scope of the programme 
includes: 

People and Organisational Development: The programme will enable the Council to define and 
deliver the required workforce and accommodation capability change.  

The Growth, Assets and Municipal Enterprise programme has been developed to: 
§ Contribute to the growth of the City and the move towards a brilliant co-operative 

council. 
§ Generate and accelerate additional income for Plymouth City Council from economic and 

housing growth across the Council 
§ Create a brilliant co-operative street service which will :  

§ Make operational changes to enhance service delivery  
§ Provide evidence to design and deliver new service delivery models 
§ Identify and deliver new opportunities for commercialism, new income streams 

§ Realise opportunities to bring in additional income from the commercialisation and 
increased trading of services. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 14



Full Business Case – Growth & Assets 
 

9 
v.0.09 

1. Executive Summary   

1.1.1. The GAME programme is fundamentally linked to taking forward the Council’s vision of 
being a Co-operative council. 
 

1.1.2. The GAME Programme consists of 3 parts: 
 

§ Growth – The encompassing and acceleration of existing and future economic and 
development growth within the programme to ensure delivery. 

§ Assets – The development of an asset strategy that raises income and lowers cost. 
§ Municipal Enterprise – An umbrella term for a range of projects and work streams; 

this includes the review, development and delivery of the street scene service, the 
development of new delivery models and the new/enhanced commercial focus to existing 
and future service provision. 

 
This business case sets out the financial and economic case for the Growth & Assets project. 

1.1.3. The principles behind the project have been developed to: 

§ Work co-operatively with our citizens as asset owners, partners and stakeholders to 
grow the City. 

§ Accelerate and co-ordinate economic growth and housing delivery within the city whilst 
incentives remain. 

§ Maximise the financial benefit to the council of new homes bonus, business rates and 
council tax through a new Growth Dividend. 

§ Increase the numbers of homes and jobs. 
 

1.1.4. The Growth & Assets (G&A) project proposes that by accelerating commercial and 
housing developments, an increase of income can be achieved. The aim of project is to 
maximise government funding through the incentives of New Homes Bonus and retention 
of National Non Domestic Rates and in doing so creating a “Plymouth Growth Dividend” 
 

1.1.5. The Project will identify a pipeline consisting of potential future housing and commercial 
developments. By following the proposals outlined in this business case for accelerating 
growth and increasing resources in key departments within the council, more of these 
pipeline sites could be brought forward and completed within the next three years; 
helping the programme to deliver co-operatively our financial and non-financial objectives. 

 
The G&A project brings wider benefits of growth this paper focuses on the financial 
benefit that can be expected from accelerated development creating a Plymouth Growth 
Dividend.  However it should be noted that the G&A project will also create significant 
numbers of homes and jobs. In this way there is wider benefit of a more prosperous city 
lowering the demand for other council provided support services. 
 

1.1.6. In financial terms the Growth & Assets Project is expected to deliver a minimum of 
£6.7million of gross additional benefit per annum at the end of the three year 
programme at an investment cost of £720,000.   The net benefit of this project being £6 
million1 at the end of financial year 2016/17.  This represents a return on investment ratio 
of 8.3:1.   

                                                
1 Net of £720,000 investment costs.  Net Present value £5.8 million. 

Page 15



Full Business Case – Growth & Assets 
 

10 
v.0.09 

 
The proposal contains no other options for appraisal or consideration.  The acceleration 
of building new homes, bringing empty ones back into use, delivering additional affordable 
homes and growing Plymouth’s commercial floor space, will bring in an additional uplift of 
income per annum of £6.7million gross.   

 
1.1.7. Without this additional income generated from this project Plymouth City Council would 

have to find additional savings of £6.7million by 2016/17.  These savings have not been 
identified. 
 

1.1.8. To achieve this significant acceleration in the growth of the city additional capacity will be 
essential in planning, transport and estate management.  Without this additional capacity 
the income projections within this report will be at risk. 

 
2. Vision Statement 

 
2.1.1. The vision of the Growth & Assets project is encompassed within the Growth, Assets 

and Municipal Enterprise (GAME) programme vision. GAME will deliver the key building 
blocks to enable Plymouth City Council to become “the Brilliant Co-operative Council” 

 
2.2. The overall vision of the GAME programme will: 

 
§ Be pioneering in developing and delivering quality, innovative brilliant services with our 

citizens and partners that make a real difference to the wealth, health and well- being of the 
residents of Plymouth through challenging economic times. 
 

§ Grow Plymouth through accelerating housing and economic development creating new 
houses, sustainable jobs and making Plymouth an attractive place to do business, making us 
stronger and more confident as a result. 

 
§ Attract new investment into Plymouth by being known to be open for business and supportive 

of those who want to work with us in partnership in investing in our city.  Whilst being 
commercial in our approach to the delivery and development of existing and new services. 
 

§ Put citizens at the heart of their communities and work with our partners to help us care for 
Plymouth. We will achieve this together by supporting communities, help them develop 
existing and new enterprises, redesign existing services which will in turn create new jobs, 
raise aspirations, improve health and educational outcomes and make the city a brilliant place 
to live, to work and create a future for all that reflects our guiding co-operative values. 
 

§ Raise aspirations, improving education, increasing economic growth and regeneration people 
will have increased confidence in Plymouth.  With citizens, visitors and investors identifying 
us as a “vibrant, confident, pioneering, brilliant place to live and work” with an outstanding 
quality of life. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 16



Full Business Case – Growth & Assets 
 

11 
v.0.09 

2.2.1. The Growth & Asset project will be consistent with Plymouth City Council objectives by: 

 

• Generating additional 
income sources from the 
Growth Dividend  
 

• Optimising the use of 
Council’s asset base, to 
release properties surplus 
to operational requirements  

 
• Delivering efficient in-house 

services to realise 
opportunities to bring in 
additional income from 
trading 

 

• Developing more 
employment 
opportunities, thus 
reducing benefit 
dependency and improved 
health outcomes. 
 

• Developing the provision 
of appropriate needs 
supportive housing stock. 

 

• Supporting the building of 
new houses to support the 
population. 
 

• Growing a stronger 
economy but creating a 
range of jobs and new 
business opportunities 
within the City. 

 
• Growing Plymouth’s 

economy and making it an 
attractive place to live work 
and do business. 
 

 

• Creating a Plymouth 
where citizens and 
businesses choose to live 
and work in as a default  
 

• Using our citizen’s assets 
to best advantage, 
maximising jobs, homes 
and developing renewable 
energy production. 

3. Strategic Case 
 

3.1.1. The strategic case for the investment in this project is very compelling and not just from a 
financial perspective. 

 
3.1. Plymouth Growth Dividend 

3.1.1. Plymouth has a well-known and ambitious growth agenda, comprising 33,000 homes, 
42,000 jobs and an increase in population by around 50,000 to over 300,000 by 2031.  
However, historically the financial benefits of this growth have not been fully modelled 
into the City Council’s own budgets in a structured way. 
 

3.1.2. The Growth & Assets Project is being developed to deliver this structure through the 
creation of a Plymouth Growth Dividend (PGD).  

 
3.1.3. The PGD proposes that by accelerating commercial and housing developments from a 

development base, through the utilisation of extra resources, an increase in income can 
be achieved in 3 main areas: New Homes Bonus (NHB), National Non Domestic 
Rates (NNDR) and council tax.   

New Homes Bonus and Council Tax 

3.1.4. The New Homes Bonus Scheme was introduced in 2011 to reward and incentivise local 
authorities to build more homes. The scheme will deliver a grant over a six year period 
equivalent to the level of council tax uplift, this funding is not ring-fenced and local 
authorities can decide locally how to spend it. Since its introduction, the City Council 
have already received a total annual equivalent of £3.9 million.  

Page 17



Full Business Case – Growth & Assets 
 

12 
v.0.09 

3.1.5. A local authority adding a band D home to its council tax base will receive £1,444.13 per 
year for the following six years: £8,664 in total.  
 

3.1.6. As a local authority we are rewarded with an extra £350 per year for each home that is 
deemed an affordable home.  In 2013/14 we built 275 affordable homes. 
 

3.1.7. As more homes are built and occupied, the City Council tax base also increases, bringing 
in sustainable new income. Assuming that the level of council tax remains at £1,269.55 for 
a Band D property, every 1% increase in the council tax base (equivalent to 1,000 
additional properties) will generate around an additional £500k for the City Council 
through increased council tax.   

 
3.1.8. Using these two elements, allows the City Council to take a targeted approach to the 

monitoring and acceleration of future housing developments in attempt to utilise the 
funding opportunity and create a sustainable income stream for the future. 

National Non Domestic Rates (NNDR) 

3.1.9. In 2013/14 the system of funding local government was changed, with local authorities 
retaining a higher percentage of National Non Domestic Business Rates (NNDR), and 
sharing the risk and opportunities with central government. For Plymouth City Council 
they retain 50% of localised business rates, which means that for any net growth in the 
amount collected they will retain 50%.  
 

3.1.10. The level of NNDR a business pays for a property is based upon a nationally set 
Multiplier (currently 47.1p in the £; and 46.2p in the £ for small businesses) and the 
Rateable Value of a property. PCC can influence the total NNDR income for Plymouth 
City in two main ways, which in reality would go hand-in-hand with each other: 

§ Support, drive and increase the amount of occupied business space within Plymouth 
City. 

§ Support and drive wider economic growth, which will result in an increase in 
rateable value of business space in Plymouth City. 

3.1.11. Whilst previously there was no direct financial benefit to the City Council of achieving 
these developments within a particular budget timeframe, the new financial system allows 
the City Council to financially benefit from any investment either direct or by other 
parties by taking a proactive and coordinated approach to driving commercial and housing 
sites forward. 

 
Plymouth Growth Dividend worked example 
 
3.1.12. The Notte Street joint residential and commercial development completed in October 

2013. The site has 132 cluster flats, 0 of which are deemed as affordable homes and retail 
premises below with 61.9m2 of rateable floor space.  It should be noted in this instance that 
the residential elements are student units and therefore do not benefit from increased 
Council Tax income.  The two tables below show the increase in the Plymouth Growth 
Dividend for the site: 

 

 

Page 18



Full Business Case – Growth & Assets 
 

13 
v.0.09 

New Homes Bonus (NHB) 

Band  Number of units  Income  

A 53  £50,833.38  
B 36  £40,031.28  
C 25  £32,194.47  

D 11  £15,250.01  
E 5  £9,319.45  
F 1  £ 2,753.47  

G 1  £ 3,177.09  
H 0  £         -    
Total  132  £153,559.16  

Affordable homes 0 £          - 
NHB 
 (1 year net uplift) 

 £153,559.16 

NHB 
 (6 years net uplift) 

 £921,354.94 

                                       Table 1: NHB calculation 

Non Domestic Business rates (NNDR) 

Floor Space Rateable Value Total NNDR (pa) 
NNDR to 

Council (pa) 
61.9 m2 £9,300 £4,380.30 £2,190.15 

                                       Table 2: NNDR Calculation2 

Building a Development pipeline 

3.1.13. In order to generate a sustainable and long term dividend from growth it is essential to 
build a pipeline of development and programme of private sector stimulation that will 
deliver investment into the City within the next 3 years.  The City Council is equally 
incentivised for private sector and direct council development activity. It is anticipated that 
a proactive delivery plan might contain some or all of the following elements: 

 

                                                
2 Note under the new NNDR arrangements 50% of the business rates comes to PCC and 50% to Central Government. 

Page 19



• Focus on Major Redevelopment 
Schemes e.g. Derriford and City Centre 

• Strategic Property Review interventions 
e.g. acquisitions fund and trading arm 

• Surplus land review 
• Get Plymouth Building 
• The Plan for Homes 
• Inward Investment strategy, business 

grants and incentives package 
• City Deal and other major government 

interventions 
• Maximising all available gap funding e.g. 

Growing Places 
• Collaboration with regeneration 

agencies e.g. HCA 

• Business Support, demand stimulation 
and accelerated growth programme 

• Meanwhile uses 
• Intensification and expansion of existing 

estate e.g. Tamar Science Park 
• Direct Development schemes 
• Get the Plymouth Housing 

Development partnership to deliver 
more homes. 

• Sherford 
• Plymstock Quarry 
• North Prospect 
• Project vision (Bretonside) 
• Millbay regeneration 
• Plymouth Plan 

 
3.1.14. It should be noted that some of these developments will continue to deliver benefits 

beyond the three year period as not all units will be complete the imperative of the 
programme being to bring forward and accelerate schemes that are able to deliver within 
the 3 year period.  Equally some may not be delivered in the next 3 financial years due to 
their size and complexity but will be part of the longer pipeline supporting the City’s 
future growth and ambitions. 
 

Promoting Growth 

3.1.15. Plymouth City Council has a good record of promoting growth and a healthy pipeline 
of opportunities.  However the added financial pressures linked to current incentives 
means that this work stream (i.e. the Plymouth “Growth Dividend”) will be the 
mechanism to accelerate this activity over the next three years in a more proactive 
way.  This will involve a much more coordinated and integrated commitment to 
developing investor relationships. The City Council itself is equally incentivised for direct 
development activity on its own land and in relation to possible future land acquisitions.  
 

3.1.16. The programme provides a driver for developing the prioritisation and acceleration of 
growth projects for delivery in 2014/15.  Equally it enables acceleration and “horizon 
scanning” for the 2015/16/17 pipeline growth opportunities that will deliver within the 
timeline of the programme. 

Enabling Growth 

3.1.17. The chart below outlines the opportunity for growth over the next 10 years.  Within 
this there is a substantial potential pipeline of projects that can be accelerated to be 
completed within the current 3 year budget timeline.     The current baseline position 
can be delivered within existing resources but the opportunity for increased revenue is 
substantial if resources are invested in enabling that growth.  The potential “pipeline” 
schemes would need additional resource to deliver them. 
 

Page 20



Full Business Case – Growth & Assets 
 

15 
v.0.09 

 
Chart 1: Potential piepline 

 
3.1.18. This project is unlike other project work streams within GAME as it is centred on the 

acceleration of existing working practices rather than changing them. For successful 
delivery, the project requires specialist subject matter experts; these include specialists 
which have skills in the following areas.  
• Regeneration expertise  
• Planning and Transport expertise 
• Surveying and development viability expertise 
• Legal expertise for unlocking large scale developments 

Resilience of the pipeline  

3.1.19. The Table below shows the number of potential development sites currently in the 
pipeline for both housing and commercial developments. The strength of this pipeline 
provides further confidence of achieving the targets.  There are always a percentage of 
projects that ultimately will not be implemented, despite securing planning permission.  
Some planning permissions granted will not be implemented for a variety of financial, legal 
or other reasons.  In acknowledgement that in the normal course of events some 
development projects will not ultimately be completed – and therefore contribute to the 
Plymouth Growth Dividend, it will be important that the structured approach of the 
programme minimises the number of non-implemented projects.   
 

 2014/2015 2015/2016 2016/2017 2017+ Total 
Housing Sites 28 32 24 34 118 
Commercial Sites 12 15 15 70 112 

                   Table 3: Resilience of the pipeline  

Page 21



Full Business Case – Growth & Assets 
 

16 
v.0.09 

 
There are 23 live inward investment enquires in the pipeline3.  These vary from large 
opportunities which will create 100 plus jobs to smaller high tech businesses which will generate 
niche high value jobs. 

 
3.1.20. Table 4 below contains the programme of accelerated income from the Plymouth 

Growth Dividend components for the next three years. The schedule is made up of 
expected income from future developments  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3.2. Asset Management  

3.2.1. This element of the project will ensure strategically we link with the People & 
Organisational Development project to ensure that we deliver our corporate strategic 
accommodation blueprint aims of: 

§ have the right buildings in the right places to deliver our outcomes and support 
collaboration with partners 

§ align assets and buildings with our priorities, maximising their value for the city 
 

3.2.2. Plymouth City Council is fortunate to own a substantial estate comprising circa 2,467 
property interests made up of the corporate and commercial estate.   

Table 5: Plymouth City Council Estate 

 

                                                
3 As at 1/6/14 

4 CCG, PCHT, AMEY 

 20/14/15 2015/16 2016/17 Total 

New Homes Bonus 
Scheme  

£1,188k £743k £ 958k £2,890k 

New Council Tax  £500k £650k £850k £2,000k 

Increase in NNDR £850k £500k £500k £1,850k 

Total £2,538k £1,893k £2,308k £6,740k 

No. new homes 450 620 800 1,970 

Table 4: Growth Dividend Schedule 

 Commercial Estate Corporate Estate Total Estate 

Number of Buildings 1767 700 2467 

Capital Value of Buildings  £136m £351m £487m 

Gross Annual Running Costs   £13.7m 

Gross Annual Income Stream £6.73m £.700k4 £7.43m 

Page 22



Full Business Case – Growth & Assets 
 

17 
v.0.09 

3.2.3. The size of the City Council’s estate should enable it to utilise its assets strategically to 
support and drive the growth agenda. However, there will also be opportunities for the 
City Council to occupy less space itself, to deliver and support services. In doing so, the 
cost of running its Corporate Estate can be reduced. Depending on the assets vacated, this 
may provide an opportunity to organically grow the Commercial Estate, if and when 
commercial opportunities arise, which are worth producing to restock the estate against 
increased income potential.  The current rate of occupancy of the commercial estate 
stands at 94%.5 

 
The Commercial Estate 

3.2.4. The Commercial Estate comprises an extensive and diverse range of properties and more 
than 1,800 interests and tenancies including retail, industrial and office properties, 
business centres, market stalls and benches, ground leases, development land and leisure 
assets. In 2013/14 there was £6.7 million of income to the City Council; the Commercial 
Estate supports 326 businesses and 2,670 jobs. 

3.2.5. Within the Commercial Estate, 35% of property interests accounts for 85% of the total 
income with the top three tenants accounting for £1.2 million (18%) of the annual rental 
income.  Work is underway to maximise income.   
 
Some examples are: 
 

• Deliver 30,000 sq. of direct development employment space at Langage 
• Create Asset Categorisation System 
• Delivering increased income 
• Cross Sector Strategic Asset Management with partners 
• Delivering Homes – agree terms of disposal for Get Plymouth Building and Plan for 

Homes housing sites.  
 

3.2.6. In addition, the Council could utilise capital receipts from the disposal of assets to create 
an income stream. For example £10 million of capital receipts from land sales could be 
re-invested in Plymouth commercial property acquisitions to create an income stream of 
circa £900k per annum based on a 9% property yield. In this way the Council could 
increase the size of its Commercial Estate and generate an additional sustainable net 
income source. 6Therefore, as part of this programme, opportunities will be reviewed as 
they maybe become available and considered within a wider strategic fit. 

The Corporate Estate 

3.2.7. The City Council’s Transformation Programme is reviewing how the organisation 
interacts with its customers (though the Customer and Service Transformation 
programme) and its staff (People and Organisation Development programme). Both 
programmes are likely to significantly change the assets required in the future from 
changing delivery models and new ways of working. 
 

                                                
5 As at 28/5/14 

6 Jones Lang LaSalle Strategic property review 2013. 

Page 23



Full Business Case 
 

v.0.09 

3.2.8. The City Council has recently introduced a Corporate Landlord model, and in tandem 
with the accommodation element of the Transformation Programme could release assets 
with more services co
partners within Plymouth such as the co
Group and NHS at Windsor House.

 
3.2.9. The GAME programme Asset 

other programmes.  The Customer & Service 
Organisation whose strategic decisions will form the “future state” of accommodation 
asset need.  The GAME programme is ideally placed to be the guardian of Council wide 
asset portfolio. 

 
3.2.10. The development of the specificati

the other Transformation programmes and feed into the Asset project as outlined in the 
Figure 1 below. 

                 

 

3.2.11. The outputs of the change programme present a significant opportunity to strategically 
reduce the size of assets that 
that become surplus to operational requirements should be reviewed to see if they could 
add value to the Commercial Estate prior to disposal.

 
3.2.12. In addition, there is a significant multi

where assets have not been historically maintained. By strategic rationalisation of assets, 
the City Council can avoid this liability, although there may be a negative impact on the 
ability to dispose of some
 
 
 
 
 
 

Figure 1: Programme Relationship Structure

Full Business Case – Growth & Assets 

has recently introduced a Corporate Landlord model, and in tandem 
with the accommodation element of the Transformation Programme could release assets 
with more services co-locating and the development of shared facilities with other 
partners within Plymouth such as the co-location of City Council, Clinical Commissioning 
Group and NHS at Windsor House. 

The GAME programme Asset Management work stream is driven from the output of two 
The Customer & Service Transformation and the People and 

Organisation whose strategic decisions will form the “future state” of accommodation 
The GAME programme is ideally placed to be the guardian of Council wide 

The development of the specification for corporate asset usage will be derived from 
the other Transformation programmes and feed into the Asset project as outlined in the 

The outputs of the change programme present a significant opportunity to strategically 
reduce the size of assets that the City Council occupies directly. Any Corporate Assets 
that become surplus to operational requirements should be reviewed to see if they could 
add value to the Commercial Estate prior to disposal. 

In addition, there is a significant multi-million pound liability related to building repairs 
ere assets have not been historically maintained. By strategic rationalisation of assets, 

can avoid this liability, although there may be a negative impact on the 
some assets. 

: Programme Relationship Structure 

18 

has recently introduced a Corporate Landlord model, and in tandem 
with the accommodation element of the Transformation Programme could release assets 

with other 
, Clinical Commissioning 

is driven from the output of two 
Transformation and the People and 

Organisation whose strategic decisions will form the “future state” of accommodation 
The GAME programme is ideally placed to be the guardian of Council wide 

on for corporate asset usage will be derived from 
the other Transformation programmes and feed into the Asset project as outlined in the 

The outputs of the change programme present a significant opportunity to strategically 
Corporate Assets 

that become surplus to operational requirements should be reviewed to see if they could 

million pound liability related to building repairs 
ere assets have not been historically maintained. By strategic rationalisation of assets, 

can avoid this liability, although there may be a negative impact on the 

Page 24



Full Business Case – Growth & Assets 
 

19 
v.0.09 

Enabling the Asset Work Stream 
 

3.2.13. To enable the acceleration of this project and subsequent delivery of a plan through 
the programme that delivers reduction in operating costs, increase in income and releases 
surplus assets and supports the Growth project there is a need for an additional resource 
to accelerate this area of work and deliver the project. 
 

3.3. The Growth & Assets project in context 2014/15 

3.3.1. The Growth & Assets project is in flight and we have already commenced work on this 
project so it is important to provide assurance that this project can be delivered.  The 
project started to deliver financial benefits for 2014/15 and is proving itself as a deliverer 
of growth.  Therefore setting the context for 2014/15 gives credibility to our proposal and 
the investment required continuing the acceleration of this growth.   
 

3.3.2. The GAME programme is required to return £4 million worth of benefits in 2014/15 of 
which £2.5 million will be delivered from the Growth & Asset Project.  Table 2 shows the 
breakdown of this income stream.   There is a high degree of confidence that 2014/15 
targets will be delivered. 

 
New Homes Bonus 
 

3.3.3. The government confirmed on the 5th February 2014 that Plymouth’s New Homes Bonus 
for 2014/2015 will be £3.595 million. The Plymouth Growth Dividend was required to 
return additional income of £1.1 million on top of the existing baseline of £2.4 million in 
2013/2014.  Therefore this target has already been met. 
 

3.3.4. A pipeline of accelerated new developments is already in place to ensure that 2015/16/17 
targets can be met, although there are complexities associated with this in relation to the 
payment of New Homes Bonus from October to October (rather than financial years) and 
the deductions that are made from the demolition of homes most often associated with 
major regeneration programmes across the city. 

 
Council Tax  
 

3.3.5. As a result of more new homes there is a clear correlation with additional revenue from 
these new homes and Council Tax payments.  In 2014/2015 the target of £500,000 for 
additional Council Tax will be subject to confirmation of the net additions to the city’s 
housing stock from the CTB returns to CLG, which are influenced by the number empty 
properties in those returns. Whilst New Homes Bonus is paid by CLG as an unringfenced 
grant (with provisional allocations usually announced in December of each year) Council 
Tax revenues will come direct from the occupiers of the new homes. 

 
3.3.6. The Council tax target has been defined allowing for the fact that student property 

developments do not incur Council Tax and that there will be inevitably a number of 
homes that will become vacant in the year.  

 
 
 
 

Page 25



Full Business Case – Growth & Assets 
 

20 
v.0.09 

Non Domestic Business Rates  
 

3.3.7. Plymouth City Council currently retains half of the total of Non – Domestic business 
rates, which for 2014/15 will be at 46.2% of the rateable value. 
 

3.3.8. All commercial properties have been identified that can deliver NNDR increases in the 
period used to measure the 2014/15 target.   

 
3.3.9. To date £750,000 of new business rates to set against the 2014/15 target have been 

identified.  In addition, a current pipeline of another £100,000 in new commercial 
properties coming on stream 2014/15 will be brought forward. 

 
3.3.10. Additional NNDR will also arise from the opening of the North Yard Energy from 

Waste plant.  The actual level of NNDR expected has not yet been confirmed by the 
Valuation office and so has not been built in to targets. However, income from this for the 
last quarter of the 2014/2015 can be reasonable expected upon the plant becoming 
operational, and that will add to the NNDR. 

 
3.4. Objectives 

3.4.1. The GAME programme through Growth & Assets is expected to achieve the following 
outcomes within 2014/15/16: 

 
§ Maximising government funding – increased sustainable income to the City 

Council through the New Homes Bonus, uplift in NNDR and increased Council 
Tax income totalling £6.74 million. 

§ Accelerated investment –through a pipeline of private sector and City Council-led 
regeneration projects.  

§ Wider growth benefits from acceleration – including from lower unemployment, 
reduced long-term benefit dependency and improved health outcomes.  

§ Asset governance – a structured asset governance structure that supports the 
strategic plan for assets; and facilitates the efficient and cost-effective management 
of existing assets.  

§ Efficient, creative and effective use of assets – more proactive alignment of assets 
(accommodation, operational and non-operational) and estate with Plymouth’s 
priorities, maximising their value, with the right buildings in the right places to 
deliver outcomes and support collaboration with partners. This will act as an 
enabler for the outcomes of the other programmes.  

§ A less costly asset base – an asset base that costs the City Council less money to 
run and maintain and maximise commercial opportunities.  

  

3.5. Scope 

3.5.1. The scope of this project is largely confined to land and buildings within the boundary of 
the city.  Where there are cross-border opportunities the City Council will work with 
neighbouring authorities. This can be seen in the diagram below: 

 

Page 26



Full Business Case – Growth & Assets 
 

21 
v.0.09 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
3.6. Out of scope   

3.6.1. The following areas are not within scope of this project, and will form parts of the 
transformation programmes indicated 

 
§ Facilities management (Co-operative Centre of Operations) 

§ Accommodation strategy (People & Organisational development) 

3.7. Assumptions 

§ That NHB/NNDR legislation remains unchanged throughout the duration of the programme. 
§ That financial resource is available to fund the need to accelerate developments to realise the 

Plymouth Growth Dividend. 
§ That the New Homes Bonus is based upon the delivery of an accelerated delivery of additional 

homes which number: 450 dwellings in 2014/2015; 620 dwellings in 2015/2016; and 800 
dwellings in 2016/2017. 

§ That there are no major changes in the reporting arrangements to CLG in relation to empty 
homes. 

§ That a suitable financial accounting allowance is made in relation to the Plymouth Growth 
Dividend associated with developments completed in 2016/2017 given that the New Homes 
Bonus payments are October to October and will not be paid until April 2017. 

§ That the Council Tax baseline is £86.7 million in 2014/2015; £88.4 million in 2015/2016; and 
£90.2 million in 2016/2017. 

§ That the NNDR base date is 1st February 2013 and baseline is £42.13 million 
§ The 2013/14 baseline for New Homes Bonus is at £2.4 million. 

 
4. Stakeholders 

 
4.1. Background  

4.1.1. The project will need to engage with staff, partners, customers, community and 
elected members throughout its whole duration. Existing communications channels 
will be utilised and engagement will align with Plymouth City Council’s corporate 
values and corporate vision.  

 
 
 

Plymouth Growth Dividend Projects  

Growth – Acceleration of 
housing and commercial 

development 

Asset management 
strategy delivered 

Figure 2: Project Scope 

Page 27



Full Business Case – Growth & Assets 
 

22 
v.0.09 

4.1.2. There are already existing communications channels open for planning and economic 
development and these will be utilised during this project.    The project will develop 
new methods of engagement where appropriate and utilise existing mechanisms 
through existing groups/networks/boards as well as the statutory processes through 
systems such as planning.  This project recognises that our citizens are: 

 
• Customers as innovators, Citizens know things that many professionals don’t know. 
• Customers as resources, Citizens have time, information and financial resources that they 

are willing to invest to improve their own quality of life and into helping others. 
• Customers as asset-holders, Citizens have diverse capabilities and talents which they can 

share with professionals and other citizens 
• Customers as community-developers, Citizens can engage in collaborative rather than 

paternalistic relationships with staff, with service users and with other members of the 
public. 

 
We will adopt and live the principles for co-operative community engagement. 

 
 

 

Page 28



Full Business Case – Growth & Assets 
 

23 
v.0.09 

4.1.3. Below are a set if high level analyses of identified stakeholders. All stakeholder 
involvement is subject to change as the project evolves. 

 
4.2. Staff Engagement 

4.2.1. Staff across council may be affected by changes made within this project; therefore 
engagement with all staff areas is a major aspect of our communication plans. Events 
such as walk-ins, briefings and road shows will enable maximum involvement from 
affected and non-affected staff adhering to the holistic and cohesive principles adopted 
by all of the Transformation related projects. 

 
Stakeholder 

Type 
Stakeholder Responsible Accountable Consulted Informed 

Affected Staff CMT   X     
SMT   X     

Trade Unions     X   
Place Directorate     X   

Non-affected 
Staff 

Council Wide Staff       X 
Transformation 
Programme 

  X     

Table 6: Staff Engagement 

4.3. Partner Engagement 

4.3.1. The following partners (see below) will be closely involved with the project. This list of 
partners may change to reflect the scope as will the nature of the engagement as it 
becomes clearer as to how partners will need to be involved with Growth & Assets. 

 
Stakeholder 

Type 
Stakeholder Responsible Accountable Consulted Informed 

Growth 
Related 
Partners 

Public Sector Land Board     X   
Local Enterprise 
Partnership 

    X   

Plymouth Growth Board     X   
Plymouth Culture Board     X   
Destination Plymouth     X   
Regeneration Forum       X 

After Care Programme       X 
Businesses wanting to be 

in Plymouth 
      X 

Plymouth Stakeholder 
Group 

      X 

Chamber of Commerce       X 
Land Owners       X 

Federation of Small 
Businesses 

     X  

Table 7: Partner Engagement 

Page 29



Full Business Case – Growth & Assets 
 

24 
v.0.09 

 
 

4.4. Member Engagement 

4.4.1. The Growth & Assets project will need to understand how and when to utilise the 
democratic decision making processes available, and be aware of the importance, where 
appropriate, of ensuring elected member/political engagement throughout its duration. 
This will often involve existing opportunities for member engagement and information 
sharing. Furthermore, elected members, where appropriate, will also need to receive 
feedback from other engagement strands to aide broader understanding of how we are 
using a co-operative approach to engagement throughout the transformation programme.   

 
4.4.2. This list of elected member stakeholders may change to reflect the scope of the relevant 

project: 
 
Stakeholder 

Type 
Stakeholder Responsible Accountable Consulted Informed 

Elected 
Members 

Cabinet     X   
Shadow Cabinet       X 

Member Transformation 
Board 

  X X   

Council's Scrutiny 
Function 

    X   

Transformation Advisory 
Group 

    X   

MPs       X 
Table 8: Member Engagement 

4.5. Community Engagement 

4.5.1. The successes of this project will be of benefit wider community with increases in the local 
economy, number of affordable new homes and number of jobs; and will need to be 
communicated to them accordingly. 

 
Stakeholder 

Type 
Stakeholder Responsible Accountable Consulted Informed 

Communities 
and Customers 

Communities of 
Identity 

    X X 

Communities of 
Interest 

    X X 

Communities of 
Geography 

    X X 

Citizens      X X 
Table 9: Community Engagement 

 
  

Page 30



Full Business Case – Growth & Assets 
 

25 
v.0.09 

5. Financial Case  
 
5.1. Benefits  

5.1.1. The Growth & Assets Project is aiming to deliver a minimum over £6.7million of gross 
additional benefit at the end of the three year programme.  This at an investment cost of 
£720,000, a net benefit of £6 million at the end of financial year 2016/17. 
 

5.1.2. The Baseline dates for the Plymouth Growth Dividend are as follows: 
 

 
 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 
NHB 1st Oct ’12 – 31st Sep ‘13 1st Oct ’13 – 31st Sep ‘14 1st Oct ’14 – 31st Sep ‘15 
Council Tax 1st Oct ’12 – 31st Sep ‘13 1st Oct ’13 – 31st Sep ‘14 1st Oct ’14 – 31st Sep ‘15 
NNDR 1st Feb’13 – 31st Mar ’15 1st Apr ‘15 – 31st Mar ’16 1st Apr ‘16 – 31st Mar ’17 
Table 10: Baseline Dates 

 
5.1.3. Table 11 below indicates the Gross benefits.  The costs are Human investment costs as 

the project is dependent on extra resources to deliver an acceleration of benefit. 
 

 

Table 11: Gross Financial Benefits 

 
  

Target 
Addressable 
Income  

Target 
Addressable 
Income / £ 

Income 
Generating 
Theme 

Income 
Opportunities  

Additional 
Income 
2014/15 - 

£k 

Additional 
Income 
2015/16 - 

£k 

Additional 
Income 
2016/17 - 

£k 

Total 
Additional 
Income 

£k 
New 
Homes 
Bonus  

450 Homes in 
14/15 
620 Homes in 
15/16 
800 Homes in 
16/17 

Increase 
(Volume) 

Increase in # of 
new homes and 
business sites > 
increase in 
NHB 
entitlement 

1,189 743 958 2,890 

Council Tax 13/14 - £85m 
14/15 - 
£86.7m 
15/16 - 
£88.4m 
16/17 - 
£90.2m 
Average   
(14/15-16/17) 
£88.4m 

Increase 
(Volume) 

Increase in # of 
new homes > 
increase in total 
value of council 
tax income   500 650 850 2,000 

National 
Non 
Domestic 
Rates  

13/14 – 
£42.134m 
 Rates 
Retained 
 (Jan 13 
NDR1 form)  

Increase 
(Volume) 

Increase in # of 
business sites > 
more 
businesses >  
increase in total 
value of NNDR 
income 

850 500 500 1,850 

 Total 2,539 1,893 2,308 6,740 

Page 31



Full Business Case – Growth & Assets 
 

26 
v.0.09 

5.2. Expected Costs 

 

5.2.1. Table 12 & Table 13 below show a breakdown of the expected costs of the project and 
the resources required to deliver them. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Table 12: Project Costs Breakdown 

 
Resources 

Area Resource Description 

Estimated Costs  
§ Capital 
• Revenue 
• External Funding 

 

• £720k over the duration of the Programme the job  

Estimated Funding 
• Internal Revenue 
• Internal Capital 
• Grants 

Include any requirements set 
by funding providers 

Transformation funding of resources to deliver G&A 

Ring Fenced Budgets e.g. HRA / 
Schools 

NA  

Project Team 
 (give details of project team 
members) 

 
Role FTE Outline role 

Planning Officer /Urban 
Designer (FTC) 

1 Senior planning post with to drive city centre/ 
Derriford projects and deal with major applications 

Transport Officer (FTC) 1 Senior transport post with to drive city centre/ 
Derriford projects and deal with major applications 

Viability Officer/Surveyor 
(FTC) 

1 Shared resource with ED to help with valuations, 
viability assessments, Section 106 discussions etc. 
(separate from need for ED to have dedicated 
surveyor – this is NOT an alternative proposal as 
that is still needed) 

Surveyor (FTC)  1 To drive and project manage the asset management 
strategy 

The team will be supported by a Project Support Officer. 

Transformation Resource 
Requirements  
E.g. business analyst; finance; 
legal; procurement; HR 

Technical Resource Required Est Start Date Est End Date 
The project will draw on technical 
support during the duration of the 
project, the exact nature to be 
determined. 

   

Business Resource 
Requirements 
E.g. subject matter experts; 
internal service area resources 

Business Resource Required Est Start Date Est End Date 

 
See above  
 

 
28/2/14 

 
31/6/14 

Costs 14/15 15/16 16/17 Total 
Programme Support  £69k £69k £69k £207k 
Subject Matter Experts 
(see Resources table below) 

£171k £171k £171k £513k 

Total £240k £240k £240k £720k 

Page 32



Full Business Case – Growth & Assets 
 

27 
v.0.09 

Table 13: Resources 

6. Risk Analysis 
Key Risks 

List any identified risks 
 

ID 

R
is
k 
O
w
ne
r Risk Description 

(A short summary of the event) 

C
ur
re
nt
 R
is
k 

R
at
in
g 

Actions to reduce risk to target 

A
ct
io
n 

Im
pl
em

en
t

at
io
n 
D
at
e 

A
ct
io
n 

O
w
ne
r 

Decision, 
Action or 
Escalatio

n 
Required 

GAME_08_RSK_1 Pa
ul
 

Ba
rn
ar
d Changes in national policy related to 

NNDR & NHB changing funding regimes 
post 2015. 

M 

The project will be controlled by delivering 
revenue throughout the life cycle and 
ensuring acceleration of schemes to 
maximise revenue whilst existing schemes 
are valid, whilst lobbying to maintain. 03

/1
2/
20

13
 

P
au
l B

ar
na
rd
 

To Note 

GAME_RSK_3 

Pa
ul
 B
ar
na
rd
 

The development market is uncertain and 
therefore development gain cannot be 
guaranteed. 

 
 
M 
 
 
 

The programme prioritises schemes based 
upon those projects that will be delivered 
within the lifespan of the programme. 

03
/1
2/
20

13
 

 

P
M
 

To Note 

GAME_RSK_4 Pa
ul
 

Ba
rn
ar
d 

 

The nature of development is such that 
there is a 2/3 year lag as development 
projects are worked up from initiation. 

M 
 

Accelerate deliverable GROWTH projects 
within the current pipeline and dedicate 
resources to ensure acceleration. 03

/1
2/
2

01
3  

P
M
 

To Note 

GAME_RSK_7 

M
al
co
lm
 

C
oe

 
 

The revaluation of business rates will now 
take place in 2017.  With the uncertainty 
of the outcome of this revaluation a 
residual risk exists to the financial benefits 
after the programme life cycle 

M 
 

The programme/project cannot control this 
risk but it should be noted as a potential 
residual risk post 2017. 

14
/0
1/
20
1

4  

M
al
co
lm

 
C
oe
 

To Note 

GAME_RSK_8 

M
al
co
lm
 C
oe

 
 

New Homes Bonus.  With no clear 
indication that Central government will 
continue with NHB after 2015 there is  a 
residual risk after the programme closes 
of this revenue stream being "turned off" 
which would result from a sizeable year 
on year income stream 

M 
 

The programme/post cannot control this 
risk but it should be noted as a potential 
residual risk post 2015 

14
/0
1/
20
14
 

 

M
al
co
lm

 C
oe
  

 
 

To Note  
 
 
 

Table 14: Risks 

6.1. Interdependencies  

6.1.1. The Growth & Assets element of the project will have a particular interdependency with 
the POD and Customer-Centric Council programmes. Changing the ways of staff working 
across the City Council will alter the building and office space requirements to support 
council staff. Similarly, changing how the City Council engages with its staff will have a 
fundamental impact on the number, location and type of assets that the organisation will 
require in the future. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 33



Full Business Case – Growth & Assets 
 

28 
v.0.09 

 
 
 
7. Project Plan 
 
 

 
 
Figure 3: Project Plan 

7.2. Project Organisation 

7.2.1. A Growth & Assets Project Board will be chaired by Paul Barnard or David Draffan.  This 
board will include relevant staff from Economic Development, Strategic Planning and 
Infrastructure and Finance so as to ensure that there is better coordination on modelling 
of the Plymouth Growth Dividend, and the assumptions behind future projections, better 
coordination with Finance on various statutory and other returns to government which 
will affect NNDR and New Homes Bonus, and a clear drive and focus on delivering the 
projects that are crucial to achieve these accelerated levels of commercial and housing 
development supported by sufficient capacity from transformation costs. 

§ Project Board Chairs - David Draffan (Assets) and Paul Barnard (Growth) 

§ Professional support from members David James, James Watt, Matt Ward, 
Grant Jackson, Claire Judd and Nick Carter 

7.2.2. The Plymouth Growth Dividend is a unique project as the financial benefits and outcome 
are based upon successfully completed developments.  Development projects can often 
be muti-faceated complex and have long time periods between conception and delivery as 
financial and legal due diligence is undertaken and various statutory consents secured.  
The project accelerates the development pipeline and with dedicated additional resources 
can deliver the Growth & Asset element of the GAME programme.   

Page 34



Full Business Case – Growth & Assets 
 

29 
v.0.09 

7.2.3. It is proposed that these two projects will be supported initially as follows: 

§ Growth Project : Subject Matter Experts (planning, transport, regeneration, 
surveying, legal) 

§ Asset Project – Subject Matter Experts (surveyor, legal)  

7.2.4. Resources will be scaled up and down over the life cycle of the project depending upon 
need. 

 
7.3. Quality Management 

7.3.1. This project will follow the Quality Management Strategy and Plan which can be found at 
S:\Transformation\Portfolio Office\12. Quality Planning 

7.4. Project Management Methodology 

7.4.1. Management of Portfolio, Managing Successful Programmes and Prince 2 methodologies 
will be used as tailored specifically for Plymouth City Council Transformation Portfolio. 
See S:\Transformation\Portfolio Office 
 

7.5. Any other tools / methodologies / processes / standards / assurance  

1.    Plymouth City Council Transformation Portfolio Lifecycle has been developed to assure 
the safe delivery of the projects and programmes in the Transformation Portfolio.  

2.    Governance is applied across the Projects and Programmes in accordance with the 
Transformation Start-up pack and subsequent documentation found in the Portfolio 
Office.  See S:\Transformation\Portfolio Office 

3.    All documents pertaining to the standards, processes, tools, methodologies and 
assurance to be applied to all Programmes and Projects in the Transformation Portfolio 
will be found in the Portfolio Office Folder as shown above. 

 

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



 

  

WORKING PLYMOUTH 
DRAFT 

Work Programme 2014 - 2015
 
Please note that the work programme is a ‘live’ document and subject to change at 
short notice. The information in this work programme is intended to be of strategic 
relevance and is subject to approval at the Cooperative Scrutiny Board. 
 
For general enquiries relating to the Council’s Scrutiny function, including this committee’s work 
programme, please contact Helen Rickman, Democratic Support Officer, on 01752 398444. 
 

 
Date of 
meeting 

 
Agenda item 

 
Purpose of the agenda item 

 
Reason for 
consideration 

 
Responsible Officer 

10.6.2014 Overview of Priorities 
for Working Plymouth 

To help inform the work programme 
and cooperative review discussion. 

 Anthony Payne – 
Strategic Director for 
Place 

Presentation on G.A.M.E 
Transformation Business 
Case 

To help inform Members of the 
G.A.M.E. business case 

Overview presentation 
to update Members. 

Nigel Gooding - GAME 
Programme Manager. 
 

Growth and Assets Full 
Business Case 

To enable Members to scrutinise the 
business case before it is submitted to 
Cabinet on 17 June 2014. 

Transformation Key 
Decision. 

Nigel Gooding - GAME 
Programme Manager. 
 

3.9.2014 

Controlled Parking 
Zones: On Street 
Parking Scrutiny Report 

To update Members of the result of 
the Controlled Parking Zones: On 
Street Parking Scrutiny Review. 

Monitor progress Mike Artherton 

    
    
    
    

10.12.2014 

Market Recovery 
Scheme 
 

 Performance Review  

Get Plymouth Building – 
2nd Annual Report 
 

For Members to be provided with the 
second annual report. 

Performance Review  

Plan for Homes – 1st 
Annual Report 
 

For Members to be provided with the 
first annual report. 

Performance Review  

    

18.3.2015 

    
    
    
    
    
    
    

NEW – items not yet allocated a date  

Parking Strategy  

Waste Collection Reorganisation Final Business Case  

Enforcement Services   

Page 37 Agenda Item 12



 

 

Commercialism in PCC Full Business Case  

Street Services Review Full Business Case  

Plan for Jobs  

Items already agreed by the Cooperative 
Scrutiny Board 2013/14 

 

Plans for the coach hub (which formed part of the Taylor 
Maxwell House/Plan for the City Centre executive 
decision) 

The Cooperative Scrutiny Board agreed in 2013/14 that the plans for the 
coach hub which formed part of the Taylor Maxwell House/Plan for the City 
Centre executive decision is included on the Working Plymouth scrutiny 
work programme for 2014/15. 

Strategic Property Review The Cooperative Scrutiny Board agreed at its 27 November 2013 meeting 
that the Strategic Property Review is included on the Working Plymouth 
work programme for 2014/15. 

  

Scrutiny Review Proposals Description 
  
  

 

Page 38


	Agenda
	5 TERMS OF REFERENCE
	11 GROWTH AND ASSETS FULL BUSINESS CASE
	GA Full Business Case v0 09

	12 DRAFT WORK PROGRAMME

